We are sitting here.
Are we sitting here?
here = where
Where are we sitting?
…where we are sitting…
You know where we are sitting.
He knows where we are sitting.

I am speaking with him.
I am talking with him.

say - (ki)mond
tell -  (meg)mond, (el)mond

speak - beszél
talk - beszélget

I am speaking with him.
Am I speaking with him?
him = who(m)
Who am I speaking with?
…who I am speaking with…
…the teacher who I am speaking with… = he
He knows where we are sitting.
The teacher who I am speaking with (does know) knows where we are sitting.
Does the teacher who I am speaking with know where we are sitting?
…that the teacher who I am speaking with (does know) knows where we are sitting…
…the fact that the teacher who I am speaking with (does know) knows where we are sitting… = it
It is interesting.
…that it is interesting…
You (do) think that it is interesting.
You don’t think that it is interesting.
Don’t you think that it is interesting?

Don’t you think that the fact that the teacher who I am speaking with (does know) knows where we are sitting is interesting?

Didn’t you think that the fact that the teacher who I was speaking with (did know) knew where we were sitting was interesting?

Why 
didn’t you think 
that the fact 
that the teacher 
who I was speaking with 
knew 
where we were sitting 
was interesting?


I (do) know that you will be here.
I (did know) knew that you would be here.


It is raining.
It has been raining.
Has it been raining?
raining = what doing
What has it been doing?
…what it has been doing…
I don’t know what it has been doing.
She doesn’t know what it has been doing.
She didn’t know what it had been doing.


We are talking about it.
Are we talking about it?

We would be talking about it.
We should be talking about it.
Should we be talking about it?
it = what
What should we be talking about?
{about it = about what
About what should we be talking?}
…what we should be talking about…
She doesn’t know what it has been doing.
What we should be talking about is that she doesn’t know what it has been doing.

I (do) use it.
I (do) use the computer.
Do I use the computer?
the computer = what
What do I use?
…what I (do) use…
…the computer that I (do) use… = it 
What we should be talking about is that she doesn’t know what it has been doing.
What we should be talking about is that she doesn’t know what the computer that I (do) use has been doing.

…the teacher who I am speaking with…
What 
we 
should be talking about 
is 
that the teacher 
who I am speaking with 
doesn’t know 
what the computer 
that I 
(do) use 
has been doing.


What we should be talking about is that the teacher who I am speaking with doesn’t know what the computer that I (do) use has been doing.

What we should have been talking about was that the teacher who I was speaking with didn’t know what the computer that I (did use) used had been doing.


We have eaten it.
Have we eaten it?
it = what
eaten = what done
What have we done with it?


We should eat it.
Should we eat it?
eat = what do
What should we do with it?
…what we should do with it…
I don’t know what we should do with it.

We should eat it.
We should have eaten it.
Should we have eaten it?
it = what
What should we have eaten?
…what we should have eaten…
What we should have eaten was spinach.

I (do) say this.
I (do) want to say this.
Do I want to say this?
this = what
What do I want to say?
…what I (do) want to say…
You (do) understand what I (do) want to say.
Do you understand what I (do) want to say?


Do you feel what I want to get through?




I (do) know that you will be here.
I (did know) knew that you would be here.
…that I (did know) knew that you would be here…
I (do) think that I (did know) knew that you would be here.


You (do) arrive at eight.
Do you arrive at eight?
at eight = when
When do you arrive?
…when you (do) arrive…

I will go home when you (do) arrive.
When you arrive, I will go home.
When you arrive then I will go home.

I will go home if you (do) arrive.
Haza fogok menni, ha te megérkezel.
Akkor fogok hazamenni, ha te megérkezel.

I will go home if you (do) arrive.
If you (do) arrive, I will go home.
Ha te megérkezel, én haza fogok menni.
If you (do) arrive then I will go home.
Ha te megérkezel, én akkor fogok hazamenni.

I would go home if you (did arrive) arrived.
(Hazamennék, ha te megérkeztél.
Hazamennék, feltéve, hogy te megérkeztél.)
Hazamennék, ha te megérkeznél.

If you (did arrive) arrived, I would go home.
Ha te megérkeznél, én hazamennék.

If you (did arrive) arrived then I would go home.
Ha te megérkeznél, én akkor hazamennék.


I would go home if you would arrive.
Hazamennék, ha te megérkeznél.


I would have gone home if you had arrived.
Hazamentem volna, ha te megérkeztél volna.
Hazamentem volna, feltéve, hogy te előtte megérkeztél.

If you had arrived, I would have gone home.
Ha te megérkeztél volna, hazamentem volna.

If you had arrived then I would have gone home.
Ha te megérkeztél volna, akkor én hazamentem volna.

I would have gone home if you would have arrived.


If you had arrived…
Ha te megérkeztél volna…

Had you arrived…
Megérkeztél ha te volna…

Had you arrived, I would have gone home.





I say that I will be here.
I said that I would be here.


deepL.com



I am fifty.
I am 50 years old.
Am I fifty?
fifty = how old
How old am I?

…that I am fifty…
You (do) think that I am fifty.
Do you think that I am fifty?
fifty = how old
How old do you think (that) I am?
How old do you think I am?


How long do you think (that) this street is?
[What do you think? How old am I?]


I have read a good book.
Have I read a good book?
a good book = what kind of book
What kind of book have I read?

I should have read a good book.
Should I have read a good book?
a good book = what kind of book
What kind of book should I have read?
…that I should have read a good book…
You (do) think that I should have read a good book.
Do you think that I should have read a good book?
a good book = what kind of book
What kind of book do you think (that) I should have read?



However,
Although,
Though,
Nevertheless,

always, never, often, sometimes, usually, hardly ever, 


I (do) tell you the truth.

…to tell you the truth…
To tell you the truth, I am hardly ever a doctor.


I (do) go home.
Going home, I met Frank.


He has been reading good books.
He would have been reading good books.
He might have been reading good books.
…that he might have been reading good books…
You (do) think that he might have been reading good books.
Do you think that he might have been reading good books?
good books = what kind of books
What kind of books do you think (that) he might have been reading?


Gerund = -ás/-és végű főnév

GOING

I (do) go home.


Going home is dangerous.


I (do) like dancing.
I (do) like to dance.

I (do) like swimming. - Én szeretem az úszást.
I (do) like to swim. - Szeretek úszni.


I (do) read a book at the library.
…reading a book at the library…

Reading a book at the library is fun. - 
(Olvasás a könyvtárban) Olvasni a könyvtárban (jó) szórakozás.

…to read a book at the library…
It is a good thing to read a book at the library.


in the theatre - bent a színházban
at the theatre - színházban

eyes of the tiger - a tigris szemei
eyes of blue - (szemek a kékek közül) kék szemek
blue eyes - kék szemek

house of cards
card house 

made of wood - fából készült

—

I (do) have a cat.
He (does have) has a cat.
Does he have a cat?
a cat = what
What does he have?
a cat = what kind of animal
What kind of animal does he have?

I (do) have a cat. - Van egy macskám.
I (did have) had a cat. - Volt egy macskám.

I (do) eat a hamburger. - Megszem egy hamburgert.
I (did eat) ate a hamburger. - Ettem egy hamburgert (akkor).


I have had a cat. - Volt már nekem macskám.

I had had a cat. - Előtte már volt nekem macskám.
I had had a cat before I met you. - Mielőtt találkoztam veled, azelőtt már volt macskám.

I had had a hat. - Volt már kalapom előtte.


I have seen that film. - Már láttam ezt a filmet.
I had seen that film before I met you. - Mielőtt találkoztam veled, már láttam azt a filmet.







I had had a cat before I met you. I still have a cat, though.


WILL 
1. I will have done it. - Addigra már meg fogom csinálni.
2. I will be doing it. - Akkor én éppen ezt csinálni fogom.
3. I will do it. - Akkor én ezt meg fogom csinálni.
WOULD 
4. I would be doing it. - Én ezt most éppen csinálnám.
5. I would do it. - Én ezt most megtenném.
WOULD HAVE
6. I would have done it. - Én ezt megtettem volna.

SHALL
I shall have done it. - Ezt addigra meg kell tennem. (EZT NEM MONDJA SENKI)
I shall be doing it. - Ezt majd akkor nekem éppen csinálnom kell.
I shall do it. - Ezt meg kell tennem.
SHOULD
I should be doing it. - Nekem éppen ezt csinálnom kellene.
I should do it. - Ezt nekem meg kellene most tennem.
SHOULD HAVE
I should have done it. - Nekem ezt meg kellett volna tennem.


CAN
I can have done it. - Addigra én ezt meg tudom csinálni.
(EZT NEM MONDJA SENKI)
I can be doing it. - Én akkor ezt éppen csinálhatom.
I can do it. - Én ezt meg tudom tenni. (majd)
COULD
I could be doing it. - Én ezt most éppen csinálhatnám.
I could do it. - Én ezt most megtehetném.
COULD HAVE
I could have done it. - Megtehettem volna.

—

Passzív

I am painted. - Le vagyok festve. Festve vagyok. Festett vagyok. Lefestve vagyok.

He has painted me. - Ő lefestett engem.
me (én) = tárgy

I am painted. 

I write a letter. - Megírok egy levelet.
The letter is written. - A levél meg van írva.


I have written a letter. - Megírtam egy levelet.
The letter has been written. - A levél meg LETT írva.


We are building a house. - Mi éppen egy házat építünk.
A house is being built. - Egy ház éppen építvén van. Éppen épül egy ház.

…by us. - …általunk.

The house is being built by us. - Miáltalunk építvén lévő a ház.

This project is being financed by the EU. - Ez a projekt az EU által van (éppen) finanszírozva.

—

Pár szó a  szavakról

paint - fest ÉS festék
minden főnév egyben ige is nyelvtanilag
Változtatás nélkül igeként kezelhetőek a főnevek.
Ugyanúgy lehet “múlt”, “jelen” és “jövő” jellegű igeneveket készíteni belőlük

Pl.

ablak - window
ablakozik - window
ablakozott, ablakos, ablakú - windowed 

A red windowed house.


owl - bagoly
owl - baglyozni


leg - láb
leg - lábazni
legged - lábazott, lábas, lábú

A long legged man. - Egy hosszú lábú ember.


Szótövek közötti összefüggések: 

stand - áll
stand - állvány

standing - álló

stand by - állni mellette (készen állni)


station - stáció (állomás)

stat - áll-

statistics - állóhelyzet 
statue - állószobor
sculpture - dombormű/nem álló szobor
state - állam
state - állít

stell - csillag (álló)
stall - felállít, álló helyzetbe hoz
install - beállít

still - álló helyzetű, mozdulatlan, változatlan(ul)


toil - nehéz munka, földmunka
húz, tol, nyom, von

tail - amit az állat HÚZ
tail - követ, jön mögötte

trail - NYOM, csapás
trail - NYOMoz, jön mögötte

train - (HUZony), VONat 

track - (kör)pálya, NYOMvonal
track - NYOMoz, visszakövet

tract - VONtat

attract - VONz
attraction - vonzalom, látványosság

—

A FELTÉTELES MÓDBAN van lehetőség mindkét oldalt WOULD/WOULD HAVE ragozással elkészíteni, de ez nem nyelvvizsga-konform.

We would have turned there.
…if we would have turned there… - …ha mi ott fordultunk volna el…
…if we wouldn’t have turned there… - ha mi nem fordultunk volna ott el…
We are stuck.
We would be stuck. - El lennénk akadva.
We wouldn’t be stuck. - (Most) mi nem lennénk elakadva.

If we wouldn’t have turned there, we wouldn’t be stuck. - Ha nem fordultunk volna el ott, (most) nem lennénk elakadva.
If we hadn’t turned there,we wouldn’t be stuck. - Ha nem fordultunk volna el ott, (most) nem lennénk elakadva. 







 
 





